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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the Seventy-Fifth Annual General Meeting of Astra Industries Limited will
be held in the Auditorium at Astra Park, Corner Ridgeway North / Northend Roads, Highlands, Harare,
on 20 May 2015 at 1200 hours for the following purposes:
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:
1.

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, together with the report of the Directors and Auditors therein.

2.

To elect Directors.
In accordance with the Articles of Association;

a)

Mr. E. Mohamed retires from the Board by rotation and being eligible offer himself for reelection.
Mr. H. Nkala retires from the Board by rotation and, although eligible, has advised that he
does not intend to seek re-election.
Mr. G. van Der Merwe was appointed to the Board on the 1st of April 2015, he retires in terms
of the Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
Mr. van Der Merwe is the current Operations Director at Kansai Plascon Africa Limited.

b)
c)

3.

To fix the remuneration of the non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 December
2014.

4.

To approve the remuneration of the Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2014.

5.

To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
6.

Amendments to Articles of Association
To consider, and if deemed fit, pass with or without amendment, the following special
resolutions:

6.1

That a new Article, Article 13 (a) be inserted as follows:
‘Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Companies Act (Chapter 24:03) and in
these Articles of Association the Company shall issue securities in dematerialised form,
convert physical securities to dematerialised securities and allow its securities to be traded
in dematerialised securities, provided that no physical securities shall be converted to their
dematerialised form without the consent of the holder thereof.’

SEE YOU IN
UNLESS YOU DIDN’T BUY PLASCON
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
6.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

That a new article, Article 159 (a) be inserted as follows;
Any Notice or Documents required to be sent to members in terms of these Articles or the
Companies Act (Chapter 24:03), notwithstanding anything to the contrary to Sections 159
above and 160 to 168 below may be sent by electronic means to the electronic address last
furnished by such members.

Explanatory Notes to the Proposed Special Resolutions.
Dematerialisation of securities
The Companies Act (Chapter 24:03) only recognised physical paper share certificates as opposed to
their electronic form. Paper share certificates have some disadvantages, inter alia, can be lost or
easily destroyed, and are susceptible to manipulation. The legislature has crafted legislation, the
Securities and Exchange Act (Chapter 24:25) section 72 which permits securities to be dematerialised
as way of avoiding the inherent disadvantages of paper share certificates. It is now a requirement
that all securities be converted into electronic form before they are traded on the Zimbabwe Stock
Exchange.
Electronic communication with members/shareholders
Electronic communication advancements have brought about efficient and cost effective methods
of communicating and delivery of notices and documents to shareholders. It is imperative for your
Company to keep up to date and benefit from this modern technology.
A member entitled to vote at these meetings is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
vote and speak in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
Proxy forms must be lodged at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48)
hours before the time of holding the meeting.
By order of the Board
Astra Holdings Limited Secretaries
23 April 2015

ASTRA INDUSTRIES BOARD
Directors
A B C Chinake
M Mazimbe*
E Mohamed
H Nkala
H M Nhende*
D A Thomas
Dr. C M B Utete
G. van Der Merwe ^

Chairman (Independent non-executive Director)
Managing Director
Non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Finance Director
Non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Audit, Risk and Finance Committee
D A Thomas
Dr. C M B Utete
G van Der Merwe

Chairman
Independent non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
A B C Chinake
Chairman
E Mohamed
Non-executive Director
H Nkala
Independent non-executive Director
Safety, Health and Environmental Committee
A B C Chinake
Chairman
E Mohamed
Non-executive Director
Dr. C M B Utete
Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Directors
^ Appointed 1 April 2015
MANAGEMENT
Astra Industries Limited
M Mazimbe
H M Nhende
L Nyanzara
D Mkhize
T Makota

Group Managing Director
Finance Director
Human Resources Manager
Internal Audit Manager
Information Technology Manager

Astra Chemical (Private) Limited
E J Davies#
R Mugara
N Masunda

Managing Director
Finance Manager
Sales and Marketing Manager

# - Retired on 28 February 2015
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Astra Paints
J Chinyuku
E T Gumbo
F Moyo

General Manager – Operations & Technical
Finance Manager
Branch Manager – Bulawayo

NCP Distillers Zimbabwe (Private) Limited
R Kupfuwa

Accountant

Chemical Enterprises (Private) Limited
R Munyaka
B Mjanja

Operations Manager
Accountant
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HEAD OFFICE AND REGISTERED OFFICE
14 Burnley Road
Workington, Harare
P O Box HG 300
Highlands
Harare
Web address: www.astra.co.zw
E-mail address: comms@astra.co.zw
TRANSFER SECRETARIES
First Transfer Secretaries (Private) Limited
PRINCIPAL ATTORNEYS
Costa & Madzonga Legal Practitioners
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Barclays Bank of Zimbabwe Limited
AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche
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COLOUR RUN IN PICTURES - SO MUCH FUN IN COLOUR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Overview
Astra Industries produced a solid result despite the depressed economic conditions emanating
from declining business activity levels fuelled by inadequate liquidity, and depressed international
commodity prices, by capitalising on its strategic alliance with Kansai Plascon.
Performance
Turnover for the twelve months to 31 December 2014 at $32.3 million was 19% lower when compared
to 16 months ended 31 December 2013 with profit after tax increasing by 23.8% to $2.1 million.
As the reporting periods are disparate, it would be fairer to measure this year’s performance against
the 12 months ended December 2013 (“the comparative period”). On this basis, revenue was 8%
higher with the gross margins declining slightly due to product mix, raw material cost increases and
competition. Management’s focus on the expense base, however, paid dividends with the operating
profit margins improving to 8,6%, from 5,7% last year. All the business units in the Group recorded
positive results.
OPERATIONS
Paints Division
The benefits of partnership with Kansai Plascon impacted positively particularly in the Paints Division.
The unit achieved volume growth of 28% for the comparative period. However, due to product mix
and competitive pressures the revenue growth was muted, but still pleasing being 12% higher than
the comparative period.
Chemicals Division
The Chemicals division’s volumes declined by 5%, largely due to the difficulties faced by the
manufacturing sector in Zimbabwe, which resulted in most of its key customers resorting to importing
finished products. A number of initiatives have been taken to reduce reliance on some generic
commodities instead of speciality chemical products. NCP Distillers Zimbabwe also encountered raw
material supply challenges due to the emergence of the ethanol fuel blending industry which is being
given priority in the supply of crude ethanol at a national level.
Regulatory Matters
In compliance with Zimbabwe Stock Exchange Listing Rules and the approval terms and conditions
agreed when the Finance Trust of Zimbabwe’s 63.25% stake in the Company was acquired by Hemistar
Investments (Private) Limited and Kansai Plascon Africa Limited (KPAL) in July 2013, an offer to
minorities was made in August/September 2014. Post the offer to minorities, Hemistar and KPAL
control 80,2% of the issued shares of the Company and the top 4 shareholders hold 98.12% of all the
issued shares in the Company. The current shareholding structure does not accord with Rule 4.22
and 4.25 (d) of the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange Regulations. Accordingly the Board is considering
recommending the de-listing of the Company in terms of Rule 1.10E.
Dividend Declaration
In light of the need to preserve working capital, the directors resolved not to declare a dividend.
Outlook
The business environment is not expected to improve in the foreseeable future. The Group’s focus in
light of current uncertainty is geared towards improving operational efficiencies, striving to have best
in class cost base, and higher levels of customer service.
Appreciation
Despite the difficult operating environment, the Group delivered a commendable set of results. In
that regard I wish to express my gratitude to fellow directors, management and staff for their hard
work and dedication. The contribution of all our other stakeholders, customers and suppliers is also
appreciated.

ABC Chinake
Chairman
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
SUMMARY
The business environment was challenging during the period under review. Most businesses reported
declining in volumes, while a significant number reported increasing levels of financial losses or
declining profits. These difficulties have seen a sizeable number of our customers being placed under
judicial management or being liquidated due to failure to honour their obligations thus resulting in
diminishing of our customer base. The economy has not witnessed any growth particularly in the
construction sector since the dollarization of the economy. Capacity utilisation in the manufacturing
sector was reported to have declined by 3% to 36.3% in 2014 compared to 2013.

availability of cheaper imports. As a result, the unit recorded a decline in sales volumes of 9%.

Despite these challenges, the Group recorded a good performance, anchored by strong financial
discipline and greater focus in meeting customer requirements. Operating profit achieved of $2.8m
is 24% above that achieved in 2013, yet it was longer by four months as the year-end was moved from
August to December. This was mainly achieved on the back of improved trading margins, reduced
operating costs and increased market penetration.

The Group is a member of Zimbabwe Business Council of Aids (ZBCA), in an effort to raise the level
of awareness, prevention and treatment of HIV/Aids among our employees. The Company has
established in-house medical clinics where employees get free consultation and treatment of minor
ailments, including occupational health advice.

Working capital management remained top priority for the Group in the face of insufficient liquidity.
Whereas debtors’ exposure increased due to our customers stretching the credit terms, we are
confident the amounts are recoverable. Inventory levels at 2.7 months cover slightly exceeded our
target of 2,5 months due to decline in demand in the last two months of the year. During the year the
Group paid off all its borrowings and it is expected that in the absence of significant improvement in
business activity, the Group would fund its operations from internal resources.
ASTRA PAINTS
Sales volumes for the period under review grew by 5% in comparison to previous year. This is
attributable to the coming on board of the Plascon brand. However, the initial market uptake of
high end Plascon brands was slow but demand for the low end and low margin Plascon’s Paramount
brand was strong. Due to product mix and increase in levels of trade discounts to key customers,
the increase in revenue was lower compared to last year. Most of the business during the year
was generated from the retail segment with very little generated from trade/projects and exports.
Consistent with declining industrial activity in the country, industrial coatings performed below
expectations. Automotive sector experienced stiff competition, mainly imports from South Africa
and largely targeted to the low end marketing segment. A deliberate strategy to distribute low end
products by Astra Paints is beginning to bring positive results.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Industrial relations were good throughout the period under review. There is currently a freeze on
recruitment. Headcount was reduced by 9% during the year from 321 as at 31 December 2013 to 291 as
at 31 December 2014. Training and development programmes in the Group have assisted in providing
a source for filling vacancies from within. The Group is now in a position to tap for any required
additional human resources skills available from Kansai Plascon.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Group is conscious of its role of being a responsible corporate citizen. This includes in minimising
its carbon footprint by reducing Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) in our products, looking at
various methods of reducing consumption and efficient utilisation of non-renewable energy. In
addition there is active participation in attending to the welfare of some citizens in uplifting their
standards of living.
OUTLOOK
The short to medium term is not expected to see significant improvement in the economic fortunes
of the country. Management would therefore exert most of its energy in preserving current levels
of market share, increasing our brands’ visibility in the market, increased customer service levels and
cost containment.

M. Mazimbe
Managing Director

ASTRA CHEMICAL
The manufacturing sector, which traditionally has been the key market for Astra Chemical’s products,
continued to face major challenges with capacity levels showing a downward trend. In mitigation the
unit had to focus a lot more on specialty chemicals which are low volume but high value. Volumes
during the year declined marginally but revenues increased by 9% in comparison to a similar 12 months
period to 31 December 2013 due to product mix in favour of high value low volume products.
CHEMICAL ENTERPRISES
Revenue growth of 8% on last year’s comparative period was achieved. However, volumes were 5%
below due to decline in demand for building chemicals due to competition from cheaper imports. Gel
fuel faced competition from cheaper and more preferred substitutes such as cooking gas and paraffin.
The Imperial Paint brand distributed by Chemical Enterprises enjoyed a 30% growth in volumes in 2014
compared to the same period in 2013.
NCP Distillers Zimbabwe (NCPDZ)
The emergence of the ethanol fuel blending industry in the country has created a competing
destination for the key raw material required in the production of potable alcohol. The ethanol fuel
blending industry is able to absorb higher prices for the crude ethanol. Supplies of the raw material
were disrupted during the year as the fuel blending sector was given priority by Government. In the
last quarter of the year, NCPDZ had to take a 26% price increase in raw materials which significantly
reduced its operating margins, as it could not pass on the price increase to its customers due to
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SUMMARY OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group and Company practices and appreciates the importance of good corporate governance.
The Board and management strive to attain high standards in this critical aspect in business
management and value creation for all stakeholders.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Board composition is balanced and currently has six non-executive and two executive directors. An
independent non-executive director chairs the Board. Of the non-executive directors 50% are independent.
The directors are from diverse professional and business backgrounds, a prerequisite for the Board
to effectively achieve good corporate governance standards, strategy and policy formulation and
implementation, and to provide guidance to management and staff.
The Board is supported by three standing Board Committees, The Risk, Audit and Finance
Committee, The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and The Safety, Health and
Environmental Committee. The three Board Committees comprise only non-executive directors.
Attendance to meetings by directors in 2014 is outlined below;

Year ended
31 December
2014

16 Months
ended
31 December
2013

Year ended
31 August
2012

US $

US $

US$

32,298,752

39,670,612

29,628,542

Cost of sales

(21,195,872)

(25,515,788)

(19,710,380)

Gross profit

11,102,880

14,154,824

9,918,162

720,728

599,895

679,686

( 9,035,548)

(12,500,711)

(8,396,336)

2,788,060

2,254,008

2,201,512

63,969

144,433

41,185

(48,596)

(141,095)

(194,677)

Profit before tax

2,803,433

2,257,346

2,048,020

Income tax expense

(710,956)

(568,274)

(526,653)

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

2,092,477

1,689,072

1,521,367

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue

Other operating income
Operating expenses
Operating profit

Board

Audit, Risk
and Finance

Human Resources
and Remuneration

Safety,
Health and
Environmental

Addington B.C. Chinake

4/4

N/a

4/4

4/4

Dr. Charles M.B. Utete

4/4

4/4

N/a

4/4

Mackenzie Mazimbe^

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

Ebrahim Mohamed

4/4

N/a

4/4

4/4

Douglas A. Thomas

4/4

4/4

N/a

N/a

Herbert Nkala

2/4

N/a

3/4

N/a

Herritage M. Nhende^

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

Profit for the period from continuing
operations attributable to:

Gary van Der Merwe *

N/a

N/a

N/a

N/a

Owners of the company

1,952,001

1,519,291

1,453,132

Non-controlling interests

140,476

169,781

68,235

2,092,477

1,689,072

1,521,367

Director

^ Attendees to Board Committees
* Appointed on 1 April 2015

Finance income
Finance costs

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment

-

1,921,206

117,921

Deferred tax effect on revaluation gain

-

(460,888)

(5,896)

Tax effect of change in manner of recovery
of investment property

-

-

66,542

Total other comprehensive income

-

1,460,318

178,567

2,092,477

3,149,390

1,699,934

Owners of the company

1,952,001

2,895,881

1,631,699

Non-controlling interests

140,476

253,509

68,235

2,092,477

3,149,390

1,699,934

Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
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SUMMARY OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
31 December
2014

31 December
2013

31 August
2012

US $

US $

US$

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment
Investment property
Financial Assets

9,277,252

9,565,753

7,467,465

Other current assets

Total assets

140

140

140

Weighted average number of shares in issue (million)

141

140

140

Diluted weighted average number of shares in issue (million)

141

142

142

Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
- Diluted (cents per share)

1.39

1.07

1.02

- Basic (cents per share)

1.39

1.09

1.04

124,917

103,436

-

13,137,169

13,554,189

11,427,465

1,783,863

716,288

1,000,263

Weighted net asset value per share (cents per share)

Earnings per share from continuing operations:
- Diluted (cents per share)

1.39

1.07

1.02

- Basic (cents per share)

1.39

1.09

1.04

14
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4.50

5.00

4.5

- Continuing and discontinued operations

30.88

21.80

23.11

- Continuing operations

30.88

21.80

23.11

Operating profit margin (%)

8.63

5.68

7.43

Profit after tax margin (%)

6.48

4.26

5.13

Attributable profit margin (%)

6.04

3.83

4.90

Operating profit to total assets (%)

10.58

9.24

10.37

Profit before tax to total assets (%)

10.64

9.25

9.65

Profit after tax to total equity (%)

10.72

9.74

10.53

Attributable profit to equity holders of the parent (%)

10.72

9.38

10.72

(181)

(675)

14.34

11,421,971

10,123,423

8,798,758

Share price at year end (cents per share)

13,205,834

10,839,711

9,799,021

Earnings yield based on weighted number of shares (%)

26,343,003

24,393,900

21,226,486

PROFITABILITY AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
– Continuing operations:
1,399,941

1,397,291

16,793,830

14,803,429

12,155,557

Attributable to owners of the Company

18,214,321

16,203,370

13,522,848

Non-controlling interest

1,285,849

1,145,373

898,191

Total equity

19,500,170

17,348,743

14,541,039

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Number of shares in issue (million)

SHARE PERFORMANCE

3,960,000

1,420,491

Reserves

Year ended
31 August 2012

3,885,000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital

16 months ended
31 December 2013

3,735,000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Year ended
31 December 2014

1,868,600

1,884,046

1,494,537

SOLVENCY AND LIQUIDITY
– Continuing operations
Interest cover using net finance costs (times)

Current liabilities

Interest bearing debt to shareholders’ equity (%)

-

0.86

6.40

Borrowings

Current assets to current liabilities

2.65:1

2.1:1

1.86:1

Acid test ratio

1.50:1

0.97:1

0.92:1

Other current liabilities

-

150,000

925,000

4,974,233

5,011,111

4,355,910

Total current liabilities

4,974,233

5,161,111

5,280,910

Total liabilities

6,842,833

7 045 157

6,775,447

26,343,003

24,393,900

21,226,486

Total equity and liabilities

PRODUCTIVITY – Continuing operations
Number of employees
Permanent
Contract
Turnover per employee (US$)

INVESTMENT
Capital expenditure
Current assets increase

Operating profit per employee (US$)
574,960

1,164,443

1,114,412

2,366,123

1,040,690

1,249,204

13

Average cost per employee (US$)

14

291

321

388

286

311

272

5

10

116

110,992

123,584

76,392

9,581

7,022

5,674

14,845

18,216

1,599

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014.
Year’s results
The annexed financial statements adequately disclose the results of the Group’s operations during
the year. They should be read in conjunction with the Chairman’s statement and Managing Director’s
review of operations, both of which base their comments on the financial statements. Earnings
attributable to owners of the company for continuing and discontinued operations were US$1,952,001
(2013: US$ 1,519,291). These include a fair value loss on investment property amounting to US$150,000
(2013: US$ 75,000) which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Property, plant and equipment
Capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2014 totalled US$ 574,960 (2013: US$1,164,443).
The capital expenditure for the year to 31 December 2015 is planned at US$1.3 million, of which none
has been contracted.
Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Company is US$1,550,000 and comprise 155,000,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.01 each. There were 2,055,000 share options exercised during the year increasing the
issued share capital to 142,049,136 (2013: 139,994,136). As at 31 December 2014 there were no ordinary
shares under options (2013: 2,055,000).
Reserves
The movement in the reserves of the Group are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Auditors
Members will be asked to appoint Deloitte & Touche as auditors of the Group for the ensuing year and
approve payment of their fees for the past financial year.
The directors of the Company and the Group are responsible for:
•

Presenting the shareholders with a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group
and Company’s financial position and financial performance at the end of the financial year.

•

Ensuring that the Group and the Company maintains accounting records, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group and the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with relevant statutes.

•

Taking steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and the Company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

•

Selecting appropriate accounting policies which follow International Financial Reporting
Standards and for monitoring compliance by the Group and the Company.

Approval
These financial statements are expressed in United States dollars. The Board of Directors assumes
responsibility for the Group Annual Financial Statements, which were approved by the Board on 18
February 2015.

To the Members of Astra Industries Limited
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Astra Industries Limited (the Company)
and its subsidiaries (the Group) on pages 17 to 72, which comprise the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the
Companies Act (Chapter 24:03). This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
OPINION
In our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Astra Industries Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In our opinion, the financial statements have, in all material respects, been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Act (Chapter 24:03).

ABC Chinake

M Mazimbe

15

Deloitte & Touche
HARARE, ZIMBABWE
19 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
Year ended
31 December
2014

16 months ended
31 December
2013

US $

US$

32,298,752

39,670,612

Cost of sales

(21,195,872)

(25,515,788)

Gross profit

11,102,880

14,154,824

Notes
Revenue

Other operating income
Operating expenses
Operating profit

5

720,728

599,895

(9,035,548)

(12,500,711)

2,788,060

2,254,008

Notes

As at 31 December 2014

As at 31 December 2013

US$

US$

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

9

9,277,252

9,565,753

Investment property

10

3,735,000

3,885,000

Financial Assets

11

124,917

103,436

13,137,169

13,554,189

Current assets
Inventories

13

5,745,672

5,828,240

Trade and other receivables

14

5,260,759

4,069,870

Finance income

6

63,969

144,433

Other assets

12

367,314

225,313

Finance costs

6

(48,596)

(141,095)

Current tax assets

7

48,226

-

2,803,433

2,257,346

Cash and cash equivalents

15

(710,956)

(568,274)

2,092,477

1,689,072

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

7

Profit for the period

Total assets

1,783,863

716,288

13,205,834

10,839,711

26,343,003

24,393,900

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Profit for the period attributable to:

Capital and reserves

Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

19

1,952,001

1,519,291

140,476

169,781

2,092,477

1,689,072

Share capital

17

1,420,491

1,399,941

Share premium

17

6,307,629

6,266,529

Revaluation reserve

18

4,105,934

4,105,934

Share option reserve

17.3

Retained earnings

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

-

1,921,206

Deferred tax effect on revaluation gain

-

(460,888)

Total other comprehensive income for the period

-

1,460,318

2,092,477

3,149,390

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

19

Total equity

-

69,084

6,380,267

4,361,882

18,214,321

16,203,370

1,285,849

1,145,373

19,500,170

17,348,743

1,868,600

1,884,046

Non-current liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the period

Deferred tax liabilities

7

Current liabilities

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company

1,952,001

Non-controlling interests

2,895,881

140,476

253,509

2,092,477

3,149,390

Earnings per share (cents)

Short-term borrowings

20

-

150,000

Trade and other payables

21

4,820,284

4,667,268

Provisions

21.1

153,949

285,528

Current tax liabilities

7

Total liabilities

Basic (cents per share)

8

1.39

1.09

Diluted (cents per share)

8

1.39

1.07

17

Total equity and liabilities

ABC Chinake
18 February 2015

18

-

58,315

4,974,233

5,161,111

6,842,833

7,045,157

26,343,003

24,393,900

M Mazimbe
18 February 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Share
capital
Balance as at 31 August 2012
Total comprehensive income for

Share
premium

Revaluation
reserve

Share
options
reserve

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Retained
earnings

Total

NonControlling
Interests

Total
Equity

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

1,397,291

6,255,100

2,729,344

77,013

3,094,100

13,552,848

898,191

14,451,039

-

-

1,376,590

-

1,519,291

2,895,881

253,509

3,149,390

2,650

11,429

-

(7,929)

-

6,150

-

6,150

-

-

-

-

-

-

(6,327)

(6,327)

-

-

-

-

(251,509)

(251,509)

-

(251,509)

1,399,941

6,266,529

4,105,934

69,084

4,361,882

16,203,370

1,145,373

17,348,743

-

-

-

-

1,952,001

1,952,001

140,476

2,092,477

20,550

41,100

-

(69,084)

66,384

58,950

-

58,950

1,420,491

6,307,629

4,105,934

-

6,380,267

18,214,321

1,285,849

19,500,170

the 16 months
Issue of shares under employee
share option plan
Dividends paid to outside
shareholders
Dividends paid to owners of the

Notes

Year ended
31 December
2014

16 Months ended
31 December
2013

US $

US $

2,788,060

2,254,008

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit for the period

5

Adjustment for non-cash items

22

667,360

698,711

Increase in working capital

23

(1,203,372)

(462,569)

Cash generated from operations

2,252,048

2,490,150

Income taxes paid

(832,943)

(709,585)

(48,596)

(141,095)

63,969

144,433

1,434,478

1,783,903

135,907

123,251

Company
Balance as at 31 December 2013
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Issue of shares under employee
share option plan
Balance at 31 December 2014

Finance costs
Finance income
Cash generated from operating activities
Cash used in investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investments in shares
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

9

Cash used in investing activities

163,200

-

(574,960)

(1,164,443)

(275,853)

(1,041,192)

58,950

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the company
Proceeds from short-term borrowings

-

6,150
575,000

Repayments of short-term borrowings

(150,000)

(1,350,000)

-

(6,327)

Dividends paid to non- controlling shareholders
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Net cash used in financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

19

-

(251,509)

(91,050)

(1,026,686)

1,067,575

(283,975)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

15

716,288

1,000,263

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

15

1,783,863

716,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION
Astra Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Zimbabwe in 1939. It’s parent
and Holding company is Kansai Plascon Africa Limited. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business is Astra Paints, 14 Burnley Road, Workington; Harare. The main
business of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) is the manufacture and distribution
of surface coatings and chemicals as described in note 4. The Group’s functional and reporting currency is the United States Dollar (US$).

IFRIC 21- Levies

The amendments address the issue of when to recognise a liability
to pay a levy. The obligating event is defined for the recognition
of a liability as the activity that triggers the payment of the levy in
accordance with the relevant legislation. It provides the following
guidance on recognition of a liability to pay levies.

Amendments to IFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amends the disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disclosures to require information about all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS
32 Financial Instruments Presentation.
The amendment deals with various aspects ranging from
modification of accounting for termination benefits to enhanced
disclosures about defined benefit plans.

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRS)

2.1

Amendments to IFRS and the new interpretation that is mandatorily effective for the year
ending 31 December 2014.

IAS 19 – Employee
Benefits

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27
investment entities.

New and revised IFRSs that are not mandatorily effective (but allow early application for
the year ending 31 December 2014.)

The amendments to IFRS 10- Consolidated financial statements
define an investment entity and introduce an exception from the
requirement to consolidate subsidiaries for an investment entity.
In terms of the exception an investment entity is required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at their fair value through profit
or loss. The exception does not apply to subsidiaries of investment entities that provide services that relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities.

2.2

IFRS 9- Financial
Instruments

The standard contains requirements in the following areas;
Classification and measurement, Impairment, hedge accounting and
derecognition.

Consequential amendments to IFRS 12- Disclosure of Interests
in other entities and IAS 27- Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.
Amendments to IAS
32 – Offsetting Financial
assets and Financial
liabilities

The amendments to IAS - 32 Financial Instruments Presentation
clarify the requirements relating to offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities. Specifically the amendments clarify the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’,
‘the application of simultaneous realisation and settlement’, ‘the
offsetting of collateral amounts’, and ‘the unit of account for applying the offsetting requirements’.

Amendments to IAS 36
– Recoverable amount
disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS - 36 Impairment of assets remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit to which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related cash generating unit (CGU).

In July 2014, the IASB finalised the reform of financial instruments
accounting and issued IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014), which will supersede
IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement in its
entirety upon the formers effective date.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
IFRS 14- Regulatory
Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International
Financial Reporting Standards to continue to account, with some
limited changes, for ‘regulatory deferral account balances’ in
accordance with its previous GAAP, both on initial adoption of IFRS
and in subsequent financial statements.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The amendments also introduce further disclosure requirement
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU
is measured at fair value less costs of disposal. The new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions, valuation
techniques used which are in line with the disclosure required by
IFRS 13 Fair value measurements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
2.2

New and revised IFRSs that are not mandatorily effective (but allow early application for
the year ending 31 December 2014) continued.
IFRS 15- Revenue
from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be
applied to all contracts with customers.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
Amendments to IFRS 11
Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

Amends IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements to require an acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a
business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to:
•

apply all of the business combinations accounting
principles in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those
principles that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11.

•

disclose the information required by IFRS 3 and other
IFRSs for business combinations.

The five steps in the model are as follows:

•

Identify the contract with the customer

•

Identify the performance obligations in the contract

•

Determine the transaction price

•

Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contracts

•

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15 a customer of an entity is a party that has contracted
with the entity to obtain goods or services that are an output of
the entity’s ordinary activities in exchange for consideration.
The core principle is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods
of depreciation and
amortization

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify that the gross
amount of property, plant, and equipment is adjusted in a manner
consistent with a revaluation of the carrying amount.

Amendments to IAS 19
Defined Benefits Plans:
Employee contributions

Amends IAS 19 Employee Benefits to clarify the requirements that
relate to how contributions from employees or third parties that
are linked to service should be attributed to periods of service.
In addition, it permits a practical expedient if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service, in
that; contributions, can, but are not required, to be recognised as
a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments apply both to the initial acquisition of an
interest in joint operation, and the acquisition of an additional
interest in a joint operation (in the latter case, previously held
interests are not remeasured).
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

IFRS 2- Amends the definitions of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market
condition’ and adds definitions for ‘performance condition’ and
‘service condition’.
IFRS 3- Require contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability to be measured at fair value at each reporting
date.
IFRS 8- Requires disclosure of the judgments made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating
segments, clarify reconciliations of segment assets only required
if segment assets are reported regularly.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
IFRS 13- Clarify that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and
IAS 39 did not remove the ability to measure certain short-term
receivables and payables on an undiscounted basis (amends basis
for conclusions only).
IAS 16 and IAS 38 — Clarify that the gross amount of property,
plant, and equipment is adjusted in a manner consistent with a
revaluation of the carrying amount.
IAS 24 — Clarify how payments to entities providing management
services are to be disclosed.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
Annual improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

IFRS 1 — Clarify which versions of IFRSs can be used on initial
adoption (amends basis for conclusions only).
IFRS 3 — Clarify that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the
accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with those
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations issued and effective at the time of
preparation, and the relevant statutory instruments (SI 33/99 and SI 62/96).

IFRS 13 — Clarify the scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph
52.

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Astra Industries Limited
(the Group) and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when an entity a) has power over the investee, b) is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

IAS 40— Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40
when classifying property as investment property or owneroccupied property.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
The application of the above new or revised IFRS and amendments to IFRS, will not have a material
impact to the amounts recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group. All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
3.2

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment
property and certain financial instruments and liabilities that are stated at fair value.
Significant details of the Company’s accounting policies are set out below and are
consistent with those applied in the previous year, except where otherwise indicated.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation technique.
In addition, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree
to which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in the entity.
The financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the Zimbabwean Companies Act, Chapter 24:03 as amended.

25

26

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

Basis of consolidation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
3.5

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company has power over the investee, is exposed or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to use its power to affect
returns. The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit.

Consolidation of subsidiary begins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non- controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if the results in the non- controlling interests have a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are to be made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
3.4

Business combinations
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition / purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 – Business Combinations
are recognised at the fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or
disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at
fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
3.6

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not materially differ from that which would be determined
using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Gains and losses arising from
revaluations are transferred to capital reserves. The methods of valuation are as follows:
Land and buildings: Open market value
Plant and equipment: Depreciated replacement value
Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised
as other comprehensive income, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed.
A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost,
being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities, and
contingent liabilities recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
Depreciation
Depreciation on revalued buildings is recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued property,the attributable, revaluation surplus remaining in
the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings. No transfer
is made from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings except when an asset is
derecognised.
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply, or administrative
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Freehold land and buildings and plant and machinery are stated in the statement
of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, determined from market based evidence by appraisal undertaken by or with
the assistance of professional valuers, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment. Vehicles, furniture and other equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
3.7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
3.9

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cashgenerating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3.8

Investments
Unlisted equity investments are stated at cost unless there is a reliable basis to measure at
fair value. Losses arising from the revaluation of investments are taken to the statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

3.10

Inventories
Inventories comprise of merchandise, raw materials, work in progress, finished goods and
manufactured components. Raw materials, merchandise, and components are valued at the
landed cost on a first in first out basis. Finished goods and work in progress are valued at
direct material and labour costs, an appropriate share of production expenses and where
applicable, excise duty. They are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value generally
determined on a moving average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete and slow
moving inventories are identified and written down with regard to their estimated economic
or realisable value. Write downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are expensed to
profit and loss in the period in which they occur.

3.11

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of
an investment as under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss, which are initially measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-tomaturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.

Financial instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected. For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading
or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial
liabilities’.

Held-to-maturity investments
Bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue recognised on an
effective yield basis.
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Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading
or is designated as FVTPL with any resultant fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability.
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield
basis. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3.12

Provisions

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
3.13

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The amount recognised as a
provision, is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Retirement benefit cost
Contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Share- based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions
are set out in note 3.21.14. These share options are valued at the date of grant. The fair
value determined is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the
Group’s estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and the liability is disclosed in a
share option reserve which forms part of equity.

Onerous contracts
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. Onerous contracts are recorded at the
present value of the net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recorded in profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

Restructurings
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan
for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry
out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to
those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

Fair value at grant date was measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimates, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations. The
value transferred to the share option reserve is amortised to retained earnings as the
related share options are exercised or forfeited.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are
measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service.
3.14

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.15

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:
the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;
the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
group; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

•

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantially been enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities.
Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity),in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or
where they arise from initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business
combination, the tax effect is taken into account in the accounting for the business combination
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•

•

•

•

Interest income
Interest revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest revenue is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note
3.19.1 below.
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3.16

Investment property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
An investment property is de-recognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on recognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised.

3.17

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

3.18
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3.19

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

3.19.1

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.19.2

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign transactions and balances
While the Group’s records are maintained in United States Dollars, some of the transactions
are conducted in other major foreign currencies. Foreign assets and liabilities are converted
to United States Dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period.
Transactions in foreign currencies are transferred to United States Dollars at rates of
exchange ruling at the time of the transactions. Transaction and translation gains or
losses arising on conversion or settlement are dealt with in the statement of profit or loss
determination of the operating income.
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3.20
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3.21.1

Segmental reporting

During the period, management considered the residual values of property, plant and
equipment which are included in the statement of financial position at 31 December
2014. The residual values of each asset category have been assessed after taking into
account age and obsolescence. The residual values were computed as a percentage of
their fair value, based on the age of the asset. The residual values of all assets will be
reassessed each year and adjustments for depreciation will be done in future periods if
there is indication for diminution in value.

A segment is identified as a reportable segment if a majority of its revenue is earned
from sales to external customers and if its revenue, profit or assets are 10% or more of
those of the Group. A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged in providing goods or services, and is subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business segments.
3.21

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management is required to
make judgments,estimates, and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual outcomes may differ from those estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements:
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Residual values of property, plant and equipment

3.21.2

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In determining the useful lives of property, plant and equipment management
considered the local operating environment, technology changes, use, type, make and
model of each asset category.

3.21.3

Impairment of property, plant and equipment other than land
Determining whether property, plant, and equipment is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash generating units to which property, plant and equipment
has been allocated. The value in use computation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value. The Directors carried out impairment tests on all
categories of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2014.
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3.21.4

Share based payments
No share options were granted in the current period. The valuation of the Group’s
share options took into consideration the adverse economic conditions that existed in
the market leading to trade ceasing on the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange and the change
in functional currency. The Group adopted the provisions of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) 2 which states that all option pricing models should take
into account, at a minimum:
(a) the exercise price
(b) the life of the option
(c) the current price of underlying shares
(d) the expected volatility of the share price
(e) dividends expected on the shares and
(f) the risk free interest rate
-

Volatility
The Group used volatility for the twelve months ended 31 August 2010 as it was
assumed that the first seven months of the United States Dollar trading period
were not a fair reflection of the share price volatility.

-

Risk free interest rate
As there was no government paper in the market. The risk free rate for the Group
was determined with reference to the borrowing rates that the Group was able to
obtain from the major financial lenders.

-

3.21.5

Expected dividends
Management prudently assumed that no dividends would be declared over the life
of the options.

Deferred taxation on investment properties
For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in IAS 40, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption set out in IAS 12.51C that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
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4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Information reported to the Managing Director for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of goods sold. The directors of the
Company have chosen to organize the group around differences in goods sold. No operating
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. The
accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as follows:
-

Paints and surface coatings

-

Chemicals

-

All other

Segment Revenues and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by
reportable segments.
Year ended 31 December 2014
Paints and
Surface
coatings

Chemicals

All Other

Adjustment

Group Total

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

13,669,510

18,629,242

-

-

32,298,752

217,715

3,689,053

960,000

(4,866,768)

-

13,887,225

22,318,295

960,000

(4,866,768)

32,298,752

1,438,502

927,014

417,832

4,712

2,788,060

6,495

18,470

(9,592)

-

15,373

Profit before tax

1,444,997

945,484

408,240

4,712

2,803,433

Income tax expense

(367,355)

(246,722)

(95,666)

(1,213)

(710,956)

Profit for the year

1,077,642

698,762

312,574

3,499

2,092,477

Depreciation expense

428,000

283,204

20,836

-

732,040

Profit / (Loss) on sale
of property, plant and
equipment

(14,741)

(1,956)

21,183

-

4,486

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales/
income
Total revenue
Results
Operating profit
Net finance income

Other information
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4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Paints and
Surface
coatings

Chemicals

All Other

Adjustment

Group
Total

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

Segment assets and
liabilities
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Additions to non-current
assets

13,848,402

9,526,701

11,143,504

(8,175,604)

26,343,003

3,743,337

2,580,891

383,411

135,194

6,842,833

355,105

219,855

-

-

574,960

Segment assets and liabilities are only those items that can be specifically identified with a particular
segment.
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue from the sale of goods to both external parties
and inter-segmental sales. Income reported represents fees charged by head office for services
rendered to the different segments.
Segment profit represents the profit after tax without the allocation of head office income and expenditure that
has been reported under All other. This is the measure reported to the managing director for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major products including inter-segmental
sales:

16 months ended 31 December 2013

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales/income
Total revenue
Results
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance cost
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Other information
Depreciation expense
Profit on sale of property,
plant and equipment
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Capital expenditure

Paints and
Surface
coatings
US$

Chemicals
US$

All other Adjustment
US$
US$

Group
Total
US$

16,597,782
406,763
17,004,545

23,072,830
5,029,435
28,102,265

960,000 (6,396,198)
960,000 (6,396,198)

39,670,612
39,670,612

1,619,845
4,002
(67,449)
1,556,398
(412,647)
1,143,751

600,775
159,461
(75,230)
685,006
(130,513)
554,493

17,633
(17,446)
187
(18,613)
(18,426)

15,755
(19,030)
19,030
15,755
(6,501)
9,254

2,254,008
144,433
(141,095)
2,257,346
(568,274)
1,689,072

328,334

562,129

29,145

-

919,608

45,874

9,424

-

-

55,298

12,287,569
3,161,333
784,126

9,392,777
2,923,068
380,317

11,142,735
852,983
-

(8,429,181) 24,393,900
107,773
7,045,157
1,164,443

Geographical Information

2014
US$

2013
US$

Paints and surface coatings

13,887,225

17,004,545

Sales

Chemicals

22,318,295

28,102,265

US$

36,205,520

45,106,810

The Group operates in three principal geographical areas: Harare, Bulawayo, and Chiredzi.

Harare

24,827,177

Bulawayo

5,579,353

Chiredzi

5,798,990
36,205,520
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5

OPERATING PROFIT

7
2014

2013

US$

US$

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

732,040

919,608

Fair value loss on investment property

150,000

75,000

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(4,486)

(55,298)

Gain on disposal of investment in shares

(163,200)

-

Reversal of onerous contract with the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe

(220,000)

-

Employee benefit expense:

4,261,995

5,762,187

- Wages and salaries

3,926,645

5,353,747

91,437

84,963

243,913

323,477

Directors remuneration - fees

58,034

85,200

Auditors remuneration:

112,339

199,218

- Audit fees

106,280

190,000

101,280

115,000

-

70,000

5,000

5,000

- Social security costs (Defined contribution plan)( NSSA)
- Pension costs (Defined contribution plan)

For the year ended 31 December/ 31 August s
For the 16 months ended 31 December
Half year review
- Other services

6,059

9,218

(200,604)

(279,341)

Security costs

425,954

685,924

Advertising costs

657,014

525,571

Net foreign exchange translation gains

Inventory write-offs

66,745

178,094

-

(86,861)

(234,403)

(128,594)

Direct operating expenses incurred on investment property:

80,705

161,707

-

Incurred on property which earned rental income

2,165

4,610

-

Incurred on property which did not generate rental income

78,540

157,097

(Reversal of impairment)/Impairment loss of trade receivables
Rental income from investment property
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FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2014

2013

US$

US$

710,662

639,653

Capital Gains Tax

14,160

-

Withholding Tax

1,580

Current tax expense in respect of the current year

Deferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense
Tax rate reconciliation
Profit before tax
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25.75% (2013: 25.75%)
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Other
Income tax expense
7

Interest charged on overdue trade receivables

53,022

143,101
144,433

(48,596)

(141,095)

Other interest expense
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-

-

(48,596)

(141,095)

2014

2013

US$

US$

2,803,433

2,257,346

721,884

581,267

-

(18,826)

11,079

17,381

(22,007)

(11,548)

710,956

568,274

2014
US$

2013
US$

1,884,046

1,494,537

(15,446)

(71,379)

Other comprehensive income –revaluation of property, plant
and equipment

-

460,888

1,868,600

1,884,046

Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings

568,274

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Balance at beginning of the period

1,332

63,969

710,956

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a
principal rate of 25.75% (2013: 25.75%) and 5% for investment properties.
The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Finance income
10,947

(71,379)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Balance at the end of the period

Interest on bank deposits

(15,446)
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

8

December

Charged/
(credited)

Charged to other
comprehensive

December

2013
US$

to income
US$

income
US$

2014
US$

Deferred income tax
liabilities
Capital allowances
Other temporary
differences

2,071,961

(40,796)

-

2,031,165

26,359

(11,377)

-

14,982

2,098,320

(52,173)

-

2,046,147

Deferred income tax
assets
Other deductible
temporary differences

8.1

36,727

-

2014

2013

Cents per
share

Cents per
share

Basic earnings per share

1.39

1.09

Diluted earnings per share

1.39

1.07

2014

2013

US$

US$

1,952,001

1,519,291

140,729,136

139,882,261

Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share are as follows.

(214,274)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(177,547)

Net deferred income tax
liability

1,884,046

(15,446)

-

1,868,600

2014

2013

US$

US$

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

CURRENT TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
basic earnings per share
8.2

Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable

48,226

-

-

58,315

The tax refund receivable was as a result
of an overpayment made by the Company to ZIMRA.

Diluted earnings per share
The earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows:
-Weighted average number of shares used in ordinary shares in calculation of basic earnings per
share.
-Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of employee options
-Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share.

Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land &
Buildings
US$

Plant,
Equipment &
Furniture
US$

Vehicles
US$

Total
US$

3,523,319

2,838,241

1,105,905

7,467,465

2,369

697,936

464,138

1,164,443

1,147,313

773,893

-

1,921,206

-

(21,124)

(46,829)

(67,953)

(116,269)

(500,808)

(302,531)

(919,608)

-

-

200

200

4,556,732

3,788,138

1,220,883

9,565,753

As at 31 December 2013
Opening net book amount
Additions
Revaluations
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Classified as held for sale
(note 16)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2013
Cost

3,199,372

3,935,644

512,379

7,647,395

Valuation

1,357,360

39,803

1,397,163

2,794,326

-

(187,309)

(688,659)

(875,968)

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss
Net book amount

4,556,732

3,788,138

1,220,883

9,565,753

As at 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount

4,556,732

3,788,138

1,220,883

9,565,753

Additions

-

329,565

245,395

574,960

Disposals

(98,817)

(23,979)

(8,625)

(131,421)

Depreciation charge

(95,774)

(373,534)

(262,732)

(732,040)

Net book amount

4,362,141

3,720,190

1,194,921

9,277,252

At 31 December 2014
Cost

3,199,372

Valuation

3,922,305

706,184

7,827,861

1,257,360

39,803

1,396,963

2,694,126

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss

(94,591)

(241,918)

(908,226)

(1,244,735)

Net book amount

4,362,141

3,720,190

1,194,921

9,277,252

The depreciation expense is based on the following useful lives:
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture
Office equipment
Computers
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40 years
10 years
5 years
10 years
5 years
3 years

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties at fair value

2014
US$
3,735,000

2013
US$
3,885,000

Balance at beginning of the period
Fair value loss
Balance at end of the period

3,885,000
(150,000)
3,735,000

3,960,000
(75,000)
3,885,000

The fair value of investment property as at 31 December 2014 has been arrived at on the basis
of a desktop basis valuation carried out by EPG Global Independent Valuers. The valuation
conforms to International Valuation Standards and was arrived at by reference to comparable
market evidence comprising complete transactions as well as transactions where offers had
been made but the transaction had not been finalised. The following assumptions were used:
Harare
Property
(53 Plymouth Road,
Southerton,
Harare)
US$
Fair value (market value) – 2013 2,700,000
Fair value adjustment – 2014
(100,000)
Fair value (market value) – 2014 2,600,000
Return on potential rental income:
-2014
13. 0%
-2013
13.0%
Land area
27,235 m2
Gross external area
15,098 m2
Gross Lettable area
14,665 m2

Bulawayo
Property
(5 Wolverhampton
Road, Donnington,
Bulawayo)
US$
720 000
(35,000)
685, 000

Bulawayo
Property
(36 Plumtree
Road, Donnington,
Bulawayo)
US$
465,000
(15,000)
450,000

TOTAL
US$
3,885,000
(150,000)
3,735,000

12%
13.1%
8,179 m2
5,077 m2
4,787 m2

9%
12.3%
3,751 m2
2,881 m2
2,746 m2

39,165 m2
23,056 m2
22,198 m2

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2014 are as follows. (See note 3.2 for explanation of fair value hierarchy).
Asset

Investment property
Total

Level 1

Level 2

-

3,735,000
3,735,000

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2during the period.
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-
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Lobels Convertible long term Debenture (i)
RBZ Treasury Bills (ii)

2014
US$
103,436
21,481
124,917

2013
US$
103,436
103,436

(i) On 8 March 2013, Lobels Bread (Private) Limited issued an unsecured 5 year convertible
debenture in settlement of its debt with a maturity amount of US$ 103,436. The debenture has
a coupon rate of 5% per annum payable monthly and matures on 9 March 2018.
(ii) In April 2014, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) issued Treasury bills in order to settle
the outstanding obligation with respect to the Company’s foreign currency that could not
be recovered from the banks during the Zim Dollar era.This was in line with the RBZ debt
assumption bill approved by Cabinet in March 2014. The treasury bills have maturity tenures of
3, 4 and 5 years and bear interest at a rate of 2 % per annum.

12

OTHER ASSETS

Prepayments

2014
US$
367,314

2013
US$
225,313

2014
US$
1,969,106
3,691,165
76,905
8,496
5,745,672

2013
US$
2,007,996
3,750,642
61,701
7,901
5,828,240

Prepayments relate to payments made in advance to suppliers.
13

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and components
Finished goods
Work in progress
Consumable stores

2014
US$

2013
US$

Trade receivables

5,261,829

3,854,061

Allowance for doubtful debts

(218,358)

(246,704)

Net trade receivables

5,043,471

3,607,357

217 288

462,513

5 260 759

4,069,870

Other receivables

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are
therefore measured at amortised cost. No interest is charged on trade receivables for
the first 60 days from the invoice date. Thereafter interest is charged at 2% per annum
on the outstanding balance.
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days. Allowances for doubtful debts
are recognised.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limit by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. 59% of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring.
Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see following aged analysis) which
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not recognised
an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amounts (which include interest accrued after the receivable is
over 60 days outstanding) are still considered recoverable.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was US$21.2million (2013:
US$25.5million)
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The Group does not hold any collateral or other enhancements over these balances nor does
it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group to the counter party.
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer
base being large and unrelated.

16

Non-current assets held for sale
The Group had no non-current assets held for sale as at year end.

17

ISSUED CAPITAL

17.1

Share Capital
2014

2013

US$

US$

1,550,000

1,550,000

Share
capital

Share
Premium

139,994,136

1,399,941

6,266,529

2,055,000

20,550

41,100

142,049,136

1,420,491

6,307,629

Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired
2014
US$

2013
US$

30-60 days

1,685,943

1,667,192

61-90 days

667,202

539,927

Above 90 days

736,766

-

3,089,911

2,207,119

59

60

Average (days)

Authorised
155,000,000 Ordinary shares
of US$0.01 each
Issued and fully paid
Number of
shares
Balance at 31 December 2013

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at beginning of the period
Current year increase in provision
Bad debts written off
Balance at end of the period
15

246,704

177,795

40,162

194,301

(68,508)

(125,392)

218,358

246,704

Issue of shares under
employee share option plan
Balance at 31 December 2014

Fully paid ordinary shares, which have a par value of US$0.01, carry one vote per share and
carry a right to dividends.
17.2

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash on hand

2014
US$

2013
US$

1,783,863

716,288

UNISSUED SHARES
In terms of the authority granted at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 February 2000,
12 415 882 of the unissued shares indefinitely remain under the control of the directors to allot
or dispose of on such terms and conditions as they, in their discretion, think fit.

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily deposit rates. Short-term
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term
deposit rates.
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SHARES UNDER OPTION
2014
US$
Share options reserve

Share option
subscription
price

2013
US$

-

17.4

135,000

90,000

-

-

US$ 0.03

1,920,000

175,000

-

-

Total

2,055,000

265,000

-

-

Ordinary shares

27 October 2009

US$ 0.03

1,920,000

2,170,000

2,055,000

2,305,000

7,098,914

7,098,914

Lapsed

-

-

Allotted

-

-

7,098,914

7,098,914

Share options
2013

2014

2013

-

366

670,000

670,000

-

1,070,863

220,000

220,000

-

1,071,229

890,000

890,000

In addition to the above Messrs M. Mazimbe and H.M. Nhende have an interest in Hemistar
Investments which has a 24.63% interest in the Group.
18

REVALUATION RESERVE

Options for allotment
Opening balance available for allotment

Closing balance available for allotment
Options to be exercised
Balance at the beginning of the period

2,055,000

2,570,000

Allotted

-

-

Lapsed

-

(250,000)

(2,055,000)

(265,000)

-

2,055,000

Exercised
Balance at the end of the period

55

-

2014
M Mazimbe
H M Nhende

2013

135,000

2013

The beneficial interests of directors and their nominees at 31 December 2014 in the share
capital of the Company were:

Number of share options

135,000

2014

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Date of grant
24 January 2007

Share options granted

2013

ZWD 50.00 (before
revaluation)

At an Extra Ordinary General Meeting of 21 September 2006, a share option scheme was approved.
In terms of this scheme, Directors may allot up to 13 463 914 shares to senior employees of the
Group. Share options are exercisable at the price prevailing on grant date. Share options granted
under the employee share option plan carry no rights to dividends and no voting rights until they
are exercised. The following share based payment arrangements were in existence in the current
and prior reporting periods.

2014

Share options exercised
2014

69,084

The Directors are empowered to grant share options to certain employees of the Group. These
options are granted for a period of ten years at a price determined by the market price ruling on the
Zimbabwe Stock Exchange on the dealing day prior to the granting of the options. Each employee
share option converts into one ordinary share of Astra Industries Limited on exercise. No amounts
are paid or payable by the recipient on receipt of the option. The number of shares subject to
option is approved by shareholders at a general meeting, and the number of options granted is
calculated in accordance with the criteria approved by the Remuneration Committee.

Subscription Price

SHARES UNDER OPTION

Balance at beginning of the period

2014
US$

2013
US$

4,105,934

2,729,344

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

-

1,921,206

Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation

-

(460,888)

Portion relating to non-controlling interests

-

(83,728)

Balance at the end of the period

4,105,934

4,105,934

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders of the company until
the Property Plant and Equipment is sold and the reserves realised.
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21.1

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2014
US$

2013
US$

1,145,373

898,191

140,476

169,781

Dividends payable

-

(6,327)

Share of other comprehensive income

-

83,728

1,285,849

1,145,373

Balance at beginning of the period
Share of attributable earnings

Balance at end of the period
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2013
US$

-

150,000

2014
US$
153,949
153,949

Onerous contract – RBZ
Bonus and commissions

2013
US$
220 000
65,528
285,528

In prior years, the Group had a present obligation to deliver scotch carts to the Reserve
Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) under a contract entered into during the Zimbabwe dollar trading
period. The costs of completing the contract approximated US$220,000 whereas there were
no economic benefits expected as the Zimbabwe dollar denominated payment was already
received in prior years (pre-dollarisation). During the period under review, the Group reversed
the provision and recognised the related income on this provision.
Provisions Reconciliation
Opening balance
Current Provision
Utilised provision
Closing balance

SHORT- TERM BORROWINGS
2014
US$

PROVISIONS

65,528
133,746
(45,325)
153,949

Unsecured at amortised cost
Drawdown on Barclays facility at
10% per annum

22

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Reversal/(Impairment loss) on trade receivables
Profit on disposal of investment in shares
Bad debts recovered
Other
Unrealised exchange (gains)/losses
Fair value adjustment of investment property

The bank loan is a drawdown on a US$ 1 million annual facility which was renewed on
31 January 2013 and expires on 31 January 2015.
Borrowing powers
In terms of the Memorandum and Articles of Association the Directors may exercise all the
powers of the Group to borrow money and to secure the repayments thereof provided that
the aggregate amount owing by the Group and its subsidiaries at any one time including
contingent liabilities for the debts of other companies but excluding intergroup borrowings
shall not, without the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Group, exceed the
shareholders’ equity net of revaluation surpluses, as set out in the audited consolidated
balance sheet of the Group and its subsidiaries. The unutilised borrowing capacity of the
Group is US$16 million (2013: US$13 million).
21

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2014
US$

2013
US$

Trade payables

3,333,070

3,929,302

Other payables

1,487,214

737,966

4,820,284

4,667,268

ADJUSTMENT FOR NON CASH ITEMS

23

INCREASE IN WORKING CAPITAL
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in Provisions

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
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2014
US$
732,040
(4,486)
28,346
(163,200)
(21,481)
(53,859)
150,000
667,360

2013
US$
919,608
(55,298)
(68,909)
(103,436)
(68,254)
75,000
698,711

2014
US$
82,568
(1,361,236)
206,875
(131,579)
(1,203,372)

2013
US$
(883,743)
(534,411)
793,387
162,198
(462,569)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

24.1

Financial Risk Factors

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
Capital management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effect of changes
in debt, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.
Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Audit
Committee. The Management identifies and evaluates financial risks. The Board provides
policies for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
Treasury Risk Management
The Management Committee, consisting of senior executives of the Group, meets on a regular basis
to analyse, amongst other matters, currency and interest rate exposures and re-evaluate treasury
management strategies against revised economic forecasts. Compliance with Group policies and
exposure limits is reviewed at quarterly board meetings of Astra Industries Limited, the parent
company.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as going concerns while maximizing the return to stakeholders. The capital structure of the
Group consists of net debt (comprising borrowings as offset by cash and bank balances)
and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings). The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The gearing ratio is
nil in the current year (2013: 1.86%).
Credit risk management
Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of short- term cash and cash
equivalent investments and trade receivables. The Group’s cash resources are invested
with the most reputable financial institutions. Trade receivables comprise a large,
widespread customer base, no single amount of which is greater than 10% of the total, and
Group companies perform on-going credit evaluations of the financial conditions of their
customers. Accordingly the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, which
has not been adequately provided for.

Maximum permissible year end borrowings
Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Actual net borrowings comprising:

Exposure to exchange rate fluctuations and foreign loans is limited by group treasury policy
which encourages all foreign balances to be denominated in United States dollars and is
monitored by the Group Management Committee. Significant exposure to foreign loans
is limited to operations that generate sufficient foreign currency receipts that effectively
act as a hedge. Operating subsidiaries manage short-term currency exposures relating to
trade imports and exports within approved parameters. At 31 December 2014, net foreign
obligations were US$ 1,776,000(2013: US$ 1,124,000) and denominated in South African
Rands.

Current borrowings (note 21)

Based on a 10% increase or decrease in the exchange rate of the United Stated Dollar
against the South African Rand, the effect would have been US$177,600 (2013: US$ 112,400)
on profit for the year. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in the foreign exchange rate.

Cash and cash equivalents
Unutilised borrowing capacity

2013
US$

14,108,390

11,735,807

-

(150,000)

1,783,863

716,288

15,892,253

12,302,095

Fair value of financial instruments
The estimated net fair values of all financial instruments approximate the carrying amounts
shown in the financial statements.

Interest Risk Management
Group policy is to adopt a non-speculative approach to managing interest rate risk. Approved
funding instruments include bankers’ acceptances, call loans, overdrafts, foreign loans and
where appropriate, long term loans. Approved investment instruments include fixed and
call deposits.
Liquidity Risk Management
With residual cash reserves, net of all borrowings and unused bank facilities; the Group is
able to meet all short term commitments.
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2014
US$
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial assets which potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s bank
balances are placed with high credit quality institutions. Loan advances are presented net
of a provision for impairment. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, trade and other
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to mitigate the Group’s exposure to
bad debts. There is no significant concentration of credit risk within the Group arising from
the financial assets of the Group.

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances
which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate, credit and
liquidity risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarised below.

Credit risk in respect of borrowing clients is diversified due to the large number of customers
comprising the Group’s customer base and their dispersion across different geographical
areas. Accordingly, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. The carrying
amount of the financial assets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking into consideration any collateral provided:

Categories of financial instruments
2014
US$

Credit risk

2013
US$

Financial assets
Held to maturity investments (note 11)

124,917

103,436

Trade and other receivables

5,260,759

4,069,870

Cash and cash equivalents

1,783,863

716,288

7,169,539

4,889,594

-

150,000

153,949

285,528

4,820,284

4,667,268

4,974,233

5,102,796

Provisions
Trade and other payables

24.3

Interest rate risk

2013
US$

124,917

103,436

Trade and other receivables

5,260,759

4,069,870

Cash and cash equivalents

1,783,863

716,288

7,169,539

4,889,594

Financial assets and other credit exposures
Held to maturity investments (note 11)

Financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings

2014
US$

24.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may fail to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due. The Group identifies this risk through periodic liquidity gap analysis and the maturity
profile of assets and liabilities. Where major gaps appear, action is taken in advance to close
or minimise the gaps.
Liquidity gap analysis

The Group’s exposure to the risk for changes in market rates relates primarily to the
Group’s short-term debt obligations with a floating interest rate. Management monitors
the Group’s debts and makes efforts to reduce the interest rate exposure. However, during
the year the Group’s borrowings were either interest-free or at fixed rates.
No financial instruments were entered into to mitigate the risk of interest rates.

At 31 December 2014
Less than
1 month
US$

1 to 3
months
US$

3 months
to 1 year
US$

1 to
5 years
US$

Total
US$

-

-

-

124,917

124,917

Trade and other
receivables

2,672,132

1,970,683

617,944

-

5,260,759

Cash and cash equivalents

1,783,863

-

-

-

1,783,863

Total financial assets

4,455,995

1,970,683

617,944

124,917

7,169,539

4,548,863

71,882

199,539

-

4,820,284

-

-

-

-

-

4,548,863

71,882

199,539

-

4,820,284

Financial assets
Held to maturity investments (note 11)

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Total financial liabilities
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COMPOSITION OF GROUP
The place of incorporation and business for the subsidiaries below is Zimbabwe.

Liquidity gap analysis

At 31 December 2013
Less than
1 month
US$

1 to 3
months
US$

3 months
to 1 year
US$

Principal Activity

1 to
5 years
US$

Total
US$

Financial assets
Held to maturity
investments (note 11)
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

-

-

-

103,436

103,436

2,320,359

1,583,442

166,069

-

4,069,870

716,288

-

-

-

716,288

3,036,647

1,583,442

166,069

103,436

4,889,594

Number of wholly owned Subsidiaries
2014

2013

Paint and surface coatings

1

1

Distribution of chemicals and
solvents

1

1

2

2

Principal Activity

Number of non-wholly owned Subsidiaries
2014

2013

Portable alcohol distillery

1

1

Distribution of paint and chemicals

1

1

2

2

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2,562,659

1,357,460

-

4,952,796

-

-

150,000

-

150,000

2,562,659

1,032,677

1,507,460

-

5,102,796

Short-term borrowings
Total financial liabilities

1,032,677

Name of
Subsidiary

Ownership interests
and voting rights
held by noncontrolling interests
2014

Net financial assets/
(liabilities)

473,988

550,765 (1,341,391)

103,436

Accumulated
non-controlling
interests

Profit or loss
allocated to noncontrolling interests

2013

(213,202)

2014

2013

2014

2013

US$

US$

US$

US$

NCP Distillers Zimbabwe

49%

49%

83,221

158,965

1,101,790

1,018,569

Chemical Enterprises

40%

40%

57,255

10,816

184,059

126,804

1,285,849

1,145,373

In addition to the above the Group owns the following dormant subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries held by the Group – Wholly owned and Unquoted:
Principal Activity
Astra Paints Limited

Dormant

Astra Limited

Dormant

Other investments
The Group disposed of their 1.99% shareholding in Medical Investments t/a Avenues Clinic in the
current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)
28.2

PENSION FUNDS

COMPENSATION FOR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was
as follows.

Astra Industries Pension Fund
The Group and its employees contribute to the Astra Industries Pension Fund which is
a defined contribution plan. Contributions amount to 10% by the Group while employees
contribute 6% of pensionable emoluments.
National Social Security Authority Scheme (NSSA)
This is a defined contribution scheme promulgated under the National Social Security Act of
1989. The Group’s obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions legislated
from time to time. These are presently 3.5% of pensionable emoluments limited to US$700 per
month per employee.

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

2014

2013

US$

US$

1,611,957

2,164,998

152,702

129,751

1,764,659

2,294,749

Charge made to the Group’s statement of comprehensive income for the year was:

Astra Industries Pension Fund (defined
contribution plan)
NSSA (defined contribution plan)
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28.1

2014
US$

2013
US$

243,913

323,477

91,437

84,963

335,350

408,440

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
29

OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases relate to the investment properties owned by the Group with lease terms of
between 1 and 3 years with an option to extend for further 3 years. All operating lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no known contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties and direct operating
expenses arising on the investment properties for the year are set in note 5.

RELATED PARTIES
TRADING TRANSACTIONS

Non-cancellable operating lease receivables

During the year, Group entities entered into the following trading transactions with related
parties that are not members of the Group:
2014
US$

2013
US$

739,216

356,718

COST OF SALES:
Purchases from Kansai Plascon Africa Limited
OPERATING EXPENSES:

30

Rentals
- Paid by Chemical Enterprises (Private) Limited
to Houstborne Investments(Private) Limited,
an outside shareholder in Chemical Enterprises,
who is the owner of the business premises.

68,676

87,264

2014
US$

2013
US$

Not later than 1 year

-

54,000

Later than 1 year and not longer than 5 years

-

36,000

Later than 5 years

-

-

-

90,000

2014

2013

US$

US$

1,266,101

500,972

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Property, plant and equipment authorised but not contracted

All trading transactions were at arm’s length and normal trading terms.
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31

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
In the period under review, NCP Distillers Zimbabwe encountered significant raw material shortages
which resulted in the negative performance as well as reduced shortages. The shortages were as a
result of a directive by the Government for Triangle Zimbabwe to supply Green Fuel with ethanol.
Subsequent to year end, it was noted that the Government had again issued a statement stating that
Triangle Limited would only supply Green Fuels with portable ethanol. The events may significantly
impact the performance of the company in the coming year.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014
US$

2013
US$

Revenue

-

-

Expenses

-

-

Finance costs

-

-

Loss before tax

-

-

Taxation

-

-

Loss for the year

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

-

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

-

Notes

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of directors on 25 March 2015.
33

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
The Directors have assessed the ability of the Group to continue operating as a going concern
and believe that the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis is still
appropriate.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Notes

2014
US$

2013
US$

Share
Capital

ASSETS
Balance at 31 August 2012

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries

A

7,649,961

7,649,961

B

75,000

16,050

Current assets

Share options exercised
Balance at 31 December 2013

Cash and cash equivalents

Share options exercised

Total assets

7,724,961

Share Share option
premium
reserve

Share capital

1,420,491

1,399,941

Share premium

6,307,629

6,266,529

-

69,084

(3,159)

(69,543)

7,724,961

7,666,011

ABC Chinake
18 February 2015

US$

1,397,291

6,255,100

77,013

2,650

11,429

(7,929)

-

6,150

1,399,941

6,266,529

69,084

(69,543)

7,666,011

20,550

41,100

(69,084)

66,384

58,950

1,420,491

6,307,629

-

M Mazimbe
18 February 2015
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US$

US$

Capital and reserves

Total equity

US$

US$

EQUITY

Accumulated loss

Total
Equity

(69,543) 7,659,861

7,666,011
Balance at 31 December 2014

Share option reserve

Accumulated
Loss
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(3,159) 7,724,961

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
US$

2013
US$

-

-

-

-

2014
US$

2013
US$

- Investment in Astra Holdings Limited

5, 040, 074

5, 040, 074

- Investment in Astra Chemical (Private) Limited

2, 609, 887

2, 609, 887

7, 649, 961

7, 649, 961

75, 000

16, 150

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss for the year
Adjustment for non-cash items:
-

A INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Share at cost less provision:

equity settled share based payments
expense

Cash flows from operating activities

-

-

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of new shares

58,950

6,150
B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

58,950

6,150

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period

16,050

9,900

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

75,000

16,050

Amount receivable for proceeds on share options exercised by
employees:
- Collected by Astra Holdings Limited on behalf of the Company

C APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved on 18 February 2015 by the directors.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTES

Class of shareholder
Pension Funds

Number of
shareholders

Number of
shares-000s

Percentage

40

13,913

9.79%

Individuals

368

1,483

1.04%

Nominees

25

5,272

3.71%

Insurance Companies

2

5

0.00%

Employees

3

6,350

4.47%

Corporations

83

115,026

80.98%

521

142,049

100.00%

Share range
1 - 5 000

376

458

0.32%

5 001 - 10 0000

53

408

0.28%
0.86%

10 001 - 50 000

52

1,215

50 001 - 100 000

10

707

0.5%

100 001 - 500 000

18

3,832

2.70%

500 001 - 1 000 000

3

2,213

1.56%

1 000 001 - 10 000 000

7

19,295

13.58%

>10 000 000

2

113,923

80.20%

Total equity

521

142,051

100.00%

KANSAI PLASCON AFRICA - NNR,

78,932

55.57%

HEMISTAR INVESTMENTS (PRIVATE)LIMITED,

10 Largest Shareholders
34,991

24.63%

ASTRA INDUSTRIES LIMITED WORKERS TRUST

6,332

4.46%

STANBIC NOMINEES (PRIVATE)LIMITED

5,456

3.84%

BARD NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

4,161

2.93%

STANDARD CHARTERED (SCB NOMINEES)

3,911

2.75%

ZIMSEC PENSION FUND - ABC

2,361

1.66%

MMCZ STAFF PENSION FUND - ABC

1,124

0.79%

FALCON COLLEGE PENSION FUND

415

0.29%

ART CORPORATION PENSION FUND

373

0.26%

138,056

97.18%

Directors’ shareholdings are set out in note 17.4 to
these Consolidated financial statements.
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